













































































26 ANGEL’S HEAD

27

28

Stone

H.0.17 (63

Last quarter of the twelfth century

From the western facade of the Cathedral of Senlis

Careful examination of the tympanum on the West facade of the Cathedral of Senlis,
carved around 1170, depicting the crowning of the Virgin, shows that this fragment
originally belonged to the angel at the extreme right of that relief, standing close
to the statue of Christ, who is in the act of blessing. The present work was found
amid the rubble of the local museum after it had suffered war damage.

This head is imbued with the ambiguity which marked the earlier Gothic sculpture;
a mixture of rigid convention and new-found freedom. The treatment given to the
angel’s curls and the protruding eyes, between harshly delineated eyelids, are
features which belong quite emphatically to the Romanesque tradition. Both have
been linked with certain figures on the portal at Moissac. The face, however, also
expresses, in a quite new and spontaneous way, an individual vivacity. The pointed
chin and the broadly fleshy lips give to this head an almost roguish individuality.
This identical type of face is to be found repeated on the lintel of the same portal,
where angels surround the Virgin in the scene depicting the Assumption.

CAPITAL ORNAMENTED WITH FIG LEAVES
Stone

0.52x0.40 (203x15%)

c1215-1220

Originally from the Cathedral of Auxerre

Imaginative Gothic floral decoration was subject to a very drastic transformation
between the twelfth and the fifteenth centuries. It is particularly evident in the
ornamentation of capitals. In the second half of the twelfth century the inclination
to abandon the strict and traditional sinuous foliate pattern (as in the preceding
piece, No. 26), in favour of the imitation of natural forms remains narrowly
subordinate to the intent of monumentality. Architectural values are emphasised
by spirals of foliage in a regular pattern of hooks and spirals of conventionalised
vines; the flora represented is generalised to the point where no particular botanical
species can be identified.

On the other hand, from the very beginning of the twelfth century, the taste for the
precise reproduction of natural forms begins to emerge. In the present case, the
groups of leaves which replace the earlier hooked forms are quite faithful repro-
ductions of the fig leaf.

This capital, which belongs to the blind-storey of the Southern transept of the
cathedral was removed during the nineteenth century restorations. By its style, it
is more than likely that it was carved during the earlier part of the construction
process, begun around 1215, and interrupted a few years later.

THE SACRIFICE OF ISAAC
Sandstone

1.00x0.65 (393x25%)

c1240

THe action of this scene is drawn from Genesis, the first Book of the Bible. According
to Scripture, God asked Abraham, in order to test his faith, to sacrifice Isaac, his
only son. In the carving we see Abraham on the point of cutting the child’s throat.
[saac is kneeling on the wood piled for his pyre. An angel, emerging from a cloud
intervenes to stay Abraham’s hand, while, on the right, we see the ram which will
be sacrificed in the boy’s stead.

The intended purpose of this relief is unknown. It is, however, a fine example of
the essential qualities of classic Gothic sculpture: balance and restraint, noteworthy
simplicity in treating drapery and, in a way, a pervading sense of harmony and,
even, of serenity.




This work is the only one attributable to a specific master working within one of
those workshops of the second quarter of the twelfth century whose production
reflects a distinct influence from the style originated by the builders of Chartres
Cathedral. These workshops were contemporary with the master-carver of the
present work. They were the designers of the decoration and were responsible for
the erection of the Southern transept of the Cathedral of Strasbourg. The origin
of the present work can be localised because of the influence of Chartres evident
in it and the belief that the same carver’s hand can be found here and in the rood-
screen at Chartres, as well as in similar structures in the German Cathedrals of
Mainz and Naumburg. Such resemblances underscore the complex exchanges of
influence at a time when artists led a nomadic life.

29 KING CHILDEBERT
Painted stone
H.1.80 (70%
c1240
From the Abbey of Saint-Germain-des-Pres, Paris
Measurements and a description of a royal figure which precisely fit this statue are
to be found in a text written in the eighteenth century. The same text also places
the work at the door of the refectory of the Abbey of Saint-Germain-des-Prés,
which was to be destroyed during the French Revolution. It was at that time that
the statue became part of the displays of the Museum of French Monuments, from
whence it was subsequently transferred to the Louvre Museum. This crowned
royal figure, according to an old and possibly mistaken tradition, affirms it to be
the monument to the founder of the Abbey, King Childebert, who died in 558.
Because it is known that the refectory or eating-hall of the Abbey was erected
between 1239 and 1244, the date of this statue can be quite precisely suggested.
It is very close in style to the figure of Christ, belonging to the Last Judgement
portal of Notre-Dame of Paris, and clearly expresses the innovating trends favoured
by the sculpture workshops of Paris at the time.
The stance of this figure is rhythmic, while the general outline is almost sharp in its
gauntness. The face is refined and, in a way, witty, with its almond-shaped eyes, its
almost smiling lips, the very special grooming of the beard and of the drooping
moustache. These mannerisms of style dominate the sculpture of the thirteenth
century and can best be seen in the Cathedral of Reims.

30 MARTYRED DEACON
Stone
1.10x0.55 (434x21%)
Middle of the twelfth century
Fragment of portal arch from the Cathedral of Bourges
In the thirteenth century, the sculptured decoration of church portals becomes
ever more ornate and complex. The decorative ribs of the arches framing the
tympana become peopled with crowds of figures in high relief placed one above
another. These groupings are closely connected with the iconographical theme of
the portal proper.
The present figure wears priestly vestments and carries a palm, indicating his
martyrdom, and a book, denoting the Deacon’s function as Lector during the
liturgy. This figure belonged to the West fagade of the Cathedral of Bourges, whose
main portal depicted the Last Judgement. The fifth framing arch of this scheme
was devoted to the Martyrs who, together with the angels, saints and confessors
filling the other arches, were depicted as forming the celestial Court.
This part of the Cathedral appears to have been started in the second quarter of the
thirteenth century and, logically, these carved decorations should have been
undertaken at about the same time. The style of execution belongs to the main-
stream of the Gothic, bringing together a sensitive search for an idealised human type
and a sense of lively elegance. To these must be added a very balanced harmony
in monumental terms, completing an overall pattern of deceptive simplicity. It must
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be remembered that the figure before us was given its strong expressiveness as a
part of an ordered group meant to be seen, as a unit, from below.

A number of these deacon-martyrs belong to the collection of the Bourges Museum.
All of them formed parts of a single arch, from which they were removed in the
nineteenth century in the course of a restoration which replaced them with copies.

31 A SCONCHEON WITH AN ANGEL
Stone
0.60x0.91 (233x35%)
Second half of the thirteenth century
From the cloister of the former Cathedral of Arras

A sconcheon can be described as that triangular space where the ribs of two arches
meet at their base. The present one is carved on both faces, the reverse side being
decorated with a conventional design of foliage. This fragment was uncovered in
1965 where the cloister of the former Cathedral of Arras had stood, before its
destruction during the French Revolution. Other fragments were also excavated
at the same time, including three capitals, another sconcheon, showing a face amid
foliage, and a Virgin and Child.

It can be surmised that this work belonged to the arcades of the cloister which
flanked the Cathedral on its southern side. The questions of chronology and style
raised by this work would require protracted study to be resolved. It is believed
that the nave of the Cathedral, to which the cloister was joined, was erected during
the first half of the thirteenth century, but we have no knowledge of the date at
which the cloister itself was begun. The simplicity of the moulding and the elegance
of the angel’s gesture, combined with the soft lines of the drapery, seem to place this
work within the second half of the thirteenth century.

Research would also have to take into account possible ties between this treatment
and style with similar sconcheons, often bearing figures of angels, which are to be
found in many British religious structures. In fact, dating from 1225 to 1228, these
same features are found elsewhere in France in the cloister of Mont-Saint-Michel,
oﬂ;1 the :i:oast of Normandy, where a pronounced British influence is exquisitively
reflected.

32 MARY MAGDALENE
Stone
H.0.87 (34})
End of the thirteenth century

The original location of this statue is unknown. During the nineteenth century, it
was kept in the Basilica of Saint-Rémi, in Reims. Identification of this statue is
based on the figure’s holding a perfume jar and the cloth to be used to wipe the feet
of Jesus. These are usually the symbols identifying the Magdalene.

The charming and youthful appearance of the figure would seem an early intimation
of the even more engaging or even seductive faces to be carved in the succeeding
century. However, the simplicity with which the drapery is treated, the calm
posture and, again, the serene placidity of the face, point to the late thirteenth
century. This figure belongs to a trend developed in the Ile-de-France and in
Champagne. For example, the angels from the church at Poissy, presently at the
Louvre Museum, are further examples of this stylistic change.

33 FUNERARY HEAD
Stone
0.29x0.47 (114x18%)

Beginning of the fourteenth century

This head is a fragment of a recumbent funerary figure which was found in 1954
in the neighbourhood of the Cathedral of Nevers. Undoubtedly, it was part of a
tomb located, prior to the vandalism of the French Revolution, in either the
Cathedral or in one of the many convent-churches close to where it was unearthed.
The identity of the figure cannot be determined, but the obvious idealisation and




the jewel-studded head-band suggest a personage of rank. The treatment of the face,
the handling of the drooping pointed moustache, belong to certain conventions
prevalent in the workshops of Paris or Reims in the thirteenth century. However,
the sharp defining of the eyes, a certain abstract quality in the linear treatment of
details, suggest that this work belongs to a later period.

34 TWO FIGURES FROM A FUNERARY RELIEF
Stone
0.48x0.47 (19x18%)

Early fourteenth century

This work belongs with two other double-figure reliefs which, together, were part
of the base of a tomb originally located in the Church of Autreville (Haute-Marne).
The two other fragments are now, one in the Museum of Chaumont and the other
in the Archeological Museum of Dijon.

This piece demonstrates the evolution which occurred as early as the last decades
of the thirteenth century in the subject-matter used for the ornamentation of tombs.
These also included a slab supporting the recumbent figure of the deceased.

A number of innovations occurred at the time these monuments were given a
broader treatment. Earlier, it had been traditional that the scenes represented
should be entirely religious. This concept changed and such compositions were
slowly replaced by figures representing relatives or friends of the departed. They
were usually attired in ample hooded capes and made to appear as belonging to a
funeral train of mourners led by the clergy. However, the people represented
around such sarcophagi were not invariably those mourners in tears specifically
referred to as ‘pleurants’; rather, their presence denoted the close family ties which
surrounded the deceased, involving his relatives, either living or dead.

The present fragment illustrates this innovation in funerary decoration by showing
us a woman holding a prayer book and a man, evidently of substance judging by
the size of the purse tied to his belt. Both figures are carved in low relief, beneath
arcades decorated with stylised foliage. The work, thus, belongs to an earlier
convention of this new concept. Later on, after the latter part of the fourteenth
century, the mourning ‘pleurants’ will frequently be small statues carved in the
round.

35 EPITAPH OF MASTER PIERRE BOUTET
Stone
0.23x0.37 (9x14}

Second quarter of the fourteenth century

Epitaphs, either placed on a sepulchre or next to it, were funerary inscriptions
giving the names, titles and date of death of the deceased. The present example,
uncovered at Videix (Haute-Vienne), adds to the above the account of the donations
made by the dead priest to provide for the celebration of religious services on the
anniversaries of his passing. The inscription ends with a plea for a prayer by the
reader. This epitaph is written in Latin with the abbreviations or contractions
that were customary in writings of the time. A fine example of Gothic lettering, the
Latin reads as follows:

‘Hic.iacet.d(omi)n(u)s.Petr(us).Boteti.capel(lanus).

de.Vidays.q(u)i obiit.in-crastinu(m).o(mn)iu(m).
fideliu(m).defunctor(um).anno.D(omi)ni.M.CCC.
tr(ic)esimo.nono.et.legavit.tres.sex
tar(ios).sillig(inis).et.dece(m).denar(ios).p(ro).aniv(er)sario.
suo.a(n)i(m)a.ei(us).requiescat.i(n).pace.Am(en).
P(ro).amore.Dei.dicat(ur).P(ate)r.n(oste)r.’

The translation is:

‘Here lies Master Pierre Boutet, Chaplain of Vidays, who died the morrow of the
day of the dead (3 November) the year of Our Lord 1339 and he bequeathed three

measures (sestiers) of rye and ten pence (deniers) for his anniversary (of the day of

































































































































































































































































































































































































